
Dunes City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the City Recorder at 
541-997-3338 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance may be arranged. 

 
Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 

82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 
1 of 3 

Dunes City Council ~ Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, April 10, 2019 ~ 6:00 pm 
The meeting will adjourn not later than 9:00 pm. If agenda items are  
not completed, the meeting will continue the next Wednesday at 6:00 pm.  
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order……………………….…………………….. Mayor Robert Forsythe 
2. Roll Call ………………………………………………….. City Administrator 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag………………………… Mayor Robert Forsythe 
4. Motion to Approve the Agenda.................................................. Action Item 
5. Consent Agenda………………………………………………… Action Item 
 
All items listed here are considered to be routine by the Dunes City Council and will be enacted by one motion.   There will be no 
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered. 
 
 A. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from March 13, 2019 
 B. City Council Special Session Minutes for March 21, 2019 
 C. Bills of the Session through April 3, 2019 
 D. Receipts of the Session through April 3, 2019 
 E. Profit & Loss Statement for March, 2019 
  
6. Announcements / Correspondence 
 
 A. Reminder to City Council and Planning Commission members 
  that their Ethics Commission filing is due before April 15th.  
 
 B. The Siuslaw School District is looking for input on citizens’ 
  views on education and education facilities.  Residents are 
  encouraged to take the survey at:  https://bit.ly/SiuslawSurvey. 
  
 C. Dunes City is looking for volunteers to help out with the 
  7th Annual Dunes City Triathlon & Duathlon.  Volunteers are 
  urged to register early so they have the best chance to get their 
  first choice for their assigned  location! 
 
 D. The Woahink Lake Association is holding a clean-up day of 
  Clear Lake and Canary Roads on Saturday, April 27th from 10:00 a.m. 
  to 1:00 p.m.  Those wishing to help should meet at the Honeyman 
  State Park boat ramp. 
 
 E. The Florence Roundup of Household Hazardous Waste will take 
  place on Friday, April 12th, from Noon to 5:00 p.m. and on Saturday 
  April 13th, from 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  Visit the City of Florence 
  website for more details. 

https://bit.ly/SiuslawSurvey


Dunes City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the City Recorder at 
541-997-3338 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance may be arranged. 

 
Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 

82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 
2 of 3 

 F. The public hearing on an Ordinance to adopt new Flood Damage  
  Prevention Code has been cancelled until further notice. 
 
 G. Nominations for Volunteer of the Year are open.  Forms 
  can be down-loaded from the website and turned in to 
  City Hall before May 31, 2019. 
 
 H. Dunes City is looking for a Permit Tech as a result of 
  Denise leaving on March 25th.  If you are interested, please 
  submit your resume to City Hall before April 30th. 
 
 I. A Budget Committee meeting has been scheduled for 
  Tuesday, April 30th, at 5:00 p.m. at City Hall to begin 
  Consideration of the FY 2019-2020 budget. 
 
7. Citizen Input on Items Not Discussed in Public Hearing. 
 
 Maximum time 20 minutes: Speakers will be limited to three minutes. If the number wishing to testify exceeds seven speakers, each 
 speaker’s time may be reduced to fit within 20 minutes. 
 
8. Presentations - None 
 
9. Public Hearings 
 
 A. Ordinance No. 251 declaring the feeding of 
  wildlife in the Dunes City limits to be a nuisance.  Discussion/Action Item 
  1. Second Reading 
  2. Public Hearing 
  3. Deliberation and Decision 
 
10. New Business 
 
 A. Mayoral Proclamation declaring April, 2019 
  as Child Abuse Prevention Month in Dunes City.  Mayor Robert Forsythe 

 
 B. Consideration of offer by property owners to 
  accept donation of real property……………………. Discussion/Action Item 
 
 C. Request for City to participate in the Siuslaw 
  School District Education Expo on February 29, 
  2020………………………………………………… Discussion/Action Item
     
11. Executive Session – None 
 
 
 



Dunes City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the City Recorder at 
541-997-3338 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance may be arranged. 

 
Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 

82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 
3 of 3 

12. Old Business 
 
 A. Consideration of AMR Plan for replacement of  
  water meters to radio read water meters…………………. Discussion/Action Item 
 
 B. City of Florence’s Policy for Official City Use of 
  Social Media       Discussion/Action Item 
 
 C. Consideration of Contract for Legal Services for 
  water-related issues – Schroeder Law Offices, PC………. Discussion/Action Item 
 
13. Reports 
 
 A. Mayor’s Report…………………………………………. R. Forsythe 
 B. Community Center Report……………………………… D. Wells 
 C. Water Quality Report .…………………………………. J. Mills 
 D. Public Works Maintenance Supervisor’s Report………. J. Mills 
 E. Emergency Services Report……………………………. J. Mills 
 F. City Administrator/Recorder/Planning/Staff Report…… J. Mills 
 
14. For the Good of the Order 
 
15. Adjournment 
 
The meeting will adjourn not later than 9:00 pm. If agenda items are not completed, the meeting will continue on the following Wednesday at 6:00 
pm. 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 1 of 10 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES ~ DRAFT 

MARCH 13, 2019 AT 6:00 PM 

City Hall ~ 82877 Spruce St., Westlake, OR 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Council President Sheldon Meyer called the Wednesday, March 13, 2019, meeting of the Dunes 

City Council to order at 6:00 pm.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Roll Call was taken by City Administrator/Recorder Jamie Mills. 

 

Present: Council President Sheldon Meyer, Councilor Tom Mallen, Councilor Susan 

Snow, Councilor Robert Orr, and Councilor Alan Montgomery.  

 

Absent and Excused: Mayor Robert Forsythe and Councilor Duke Wells. 

 

Also Present: Planning Secretary Rapunzel Oberholtzer, several Dunes City  

 residents, and Siuslaw News reporter Jared Anderson.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

All who were present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Councilor Mallen made a motion to approve the Agenda. Councilor Orr seconded the 

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Councilor Snow made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilor Mallen  

seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS / CORRESPONDENCE 

 

Council President Meyer read from the list of announcements on the Agenda: 

 

A. Dunes City is looking for volunteers to help out with the 7
th

 annual Dunes City Triath-

lon and Duathlon. Volunteers are urged to register early so they have the best chance to 

get their first choice for their assigned location. 

These proceedings of the Dunes City Council were 

recorded and are on file at Dunes City Hall. Upon 

approval by the City Council, these minutes will be 

available online at www.DunesCity.com  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 2 of 10 

B. The Dunes City Council will hold a Town Hall meeting on Thursday, March 21, 2019, 

at 6:00 pm to discuss the City drinking water program. 

 

C. The Emergency Expo will be held at the Florence Events Center on Saturday, March 

30. Watch the Siuslaw News for details. 

 

D. The first public hearing on an Ordinance to adopt new Flood Damage Prevention Code 

will be held before the Planning Commission on April 25, 2019, at 6:00 pm. 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills reminded Councilors that their annual Statement of 

Economic Interest report is to be filed by April 15 on the Oregon Government Ethics 

Commission website.  

 

7. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Marlee Leonard, University of Oregon Professor, Sustainable Cities Year Program 

(SCYP) Regarding the Property Tax Ballot Question 

 

Marlee Leonard with Bella Barilati, Derren Iha, Kyra Stern, and Audrey Ziglinski, 

hosted a PowerPoint presentation about the failure of Measure 20-295 (the Dunes City 

property tax measure) on the November 2018 ballot.  

 

In their presentation, the students explained that they conducted a survey of Dunes City 

residents to find out why the measure failed and what could be done in the future to 

overcome residents’ objections to a property tax and encourage them to vote in favor. 

The results of the survey showed that some residents did not understand the ballot ques-

tion and may have voted in favor of the measure if they had.  

 

Included in the presentation were ideas for talking points and messaging as well as a 

timeline for educating residents about the ballot question in the event that Dunes City 

put it on the ballot in 2019, or another time. 

 

A COPY OF THE STUDENTS’ REPORT IS ON FILE AT CITY HALL.  

 

B. Pat Hart, AMI Specialist, Ferguson Water Works Automated Meter Readings 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills introduced Mr. Hart from Ferguson Water Works. 

Mr. Ferguson gave a PowerPoint presentation illustrating the different types of water 

meters available and the radio transmitter that affixes to them so that the meters can be 

read via a handheld device called Sensus Meter Technology.  

 

He explained that his company installed similar devices that are now used by the City 

of Florence.  

 

He went on to explain that there are two types of meters: a positive displacement meter, 

which reads hourly consumption to a low flow of 2.5 gallons per minute, and an elec-



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 3 of 10 

tromagnetic (mag) meter, that measures to .3 gallons per minute and is more efficient 

because it doesn’t have moving parts. (00:30:15) He pointed out that the mag meter has 

a twenty-year warranty, and the positive displacement meter has a ten-year warranty.  

 

Mr. Hart proceeded to outline some of the benefits of using radio reading devices:  

meters operate on a primary use band wave designated by the FCC and licensed by 

Ferguson; they allow for two-way communication (they can read the meter and also 

turn meters on and off, if necessary); and, the software can be updated. He also pointed 

out some of the benefits of the data collected: the readings can be helpful in detecting 

leaks; and, the reading threshold can be customized by the City.  

 

Mr. Hart explained that his company would provide installation services and technical 

support and training to staff. Other benefits of radio meters: the transmitter has a twen-

ty-year battery life, radios have a range of about 800 feet, the software is easy to use  

after training. (00:45:40) He also noted that his company can provide a wall-mounted 

reader for locations where meters are located under a house or in another location hard 

to access.  

 

Councilors asked if Ferguson would work on a phased installation of meters. Mr. Hart 

said that the company could do that, and he suggested that the City could start with lo-

cations that are the most difficult to read. (00:59:30) 

 

C. John Murphey, City Insurance Services – Questions and Answers 

 

Mr. Murphey explained that the City’s insurance is with City County Insurance  

Services, which is not an insurance company but is a trust, of which Dunes City is a 

member. All lines of City insurance (property, liability, auto liability, workers’ com-

pensation) are through City County Insurance. Mr. Murphey noted that in the case of an 

ethics claim directed toward a public official, only $2,500 per individual would be  

covered by insurance and only $5,000 would be paid if all public officials were in-

volved in an ethics claim. Mr. Murphey explained that the City’s insurance coverage 

should be adequate for any liability claims as long as the City abides by rules of gov-

ernment established by the City and the State. 

 

Mr. Murphey noted that the City also has flood and earthquake insurance to about 

$500,000 which covers City Hall, the pump house, the generator, and the viewing deck. 

In response to a question asked by Councilor Orr, Mr. Murphey explained that City 

County Insurance Services is the only entity in Oregon writing insurance policies for 

cities. Mr. Murphey noted that a Risk Manager reviews recommended best practices 

with the City Administrator from time to time to ensure that the City and Staff are fol-

lowing the guidelines to mitigate any risks and meeting requirements. (01:14:20)  

 

Council President Meyer called for a short break in the meeting at 7:15 pm and reconvened 

at 7:21 pm. 

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 4 of 10 

8. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

A. Supplemental Budget – FY 2018-2019 

 

Council President Meyer opened the public hearing on the proposed supplemental budget 

for fiscal year 2018-2019 at 7:23 pm and asked if there was anyone in the audience who 

wished to comment on the proposed supplemental budget. No one responded and Council 

President Meyer closed the public hearing at 7:23:30 pm. 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to approve Resolution Series 2019, Number 2, adopt-

ing the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Supplemental Budget. Councilor Montgomery second-

ed the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 

B. Need for Speed Bumps on Maple Drive 

 

Council President Meyer opened the public hearing on the need for speed bumps on  

Maple Drive at 7:25 pm.  

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills referred Councilors to a copy of a street map illustrat-

ing Maple Drive and the seven parcels on it. She explained that she had received com-

plaints from all but one of the residents about another resident who lives at the top of Ma-

ple Drive on property that is not within the Dunes City limits. The complaints involved 

concern about excessive speed on Maple, both in traveling up the road and traveling 

down. She went on to explain that Public Works Maintenance Supervisor Richard Palmer 

had been to the site and swept excess gravel off the paved portion of the roadway and 

placed a speed bump on the road. (01:22:00) 

 

Council President Meyer recognized Mr. David Heller, a Maple Drive resident, who read 

from a prepared statement outlining his and his neighbors’ concerns about speeding and 

other activities by another resident on Maple Drive, Mr. David Graham. The concerns in-

cluded: Excessive travel and speed between the barn on Erhart and the residence on  

Maple; potential problems with disposal of automotive fluids at the barn site where there 

is apparently auto repair and testing; gunfire and automatic weapons discharged from the 

Graham property, and multiple barking dogs. (01:25:00) 

 

A COPY OF MR. HELLER’S STATEMENT IS ON FILE AT CITY HALL. 

 

Council President Meyer recognized Mr. Ryan Lincoln, a Maple Drive resident, who ex-

pressed concern about speeding vehicles on Maple. He went on to explain that, after 

speaking with City Administrator/Recorder Mills, he suggested installing speed bumps be-

fore and after the mailboxes along with speed limit signs to slow traffic. He noted that 

Dunes City cannot enforce speed limits but speed bumps and signage could help bring 

awareness of speed limitations to area residents and visitors. He went on to say that since 

Dunes City is now aware of the ongoing issues in the area, it should take action to protect 

the safety of residents. (01:33:15)  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 5 of 10 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills referred Councilors to copies of written testimony 

submitted prior to the start of the public hearing. Council President Meyer asked her to 

read them into the record. 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills read from a statement submitted by Mr. Duane Fowler, 

a Maple Drive resident: 

 

Maple Drive speed bump, 

 

Should be called Stop bump as I have to come to a stop and ease my car over the one that 

was installed just below my driveway, there is a curve right above my driveway so there is 

a limited view of anyone coming down and if someone is speeding coming down and I 

have to stop for this stop bump there could be an accident so I want to make sure this is on 

record for any future incident. 

 

If the reason for a stop or speed bump is someone is speeding then put the bump above my 

driveway as that would be the best place for it. Also there could be a speed reader with 

camera put along side the road like the one that was used on Clearlake road a while ago 

to see if anyone is actually speeding. 

 

And if someone on Maple Drive wants a speed or stop bump I say put it right before there 

[sic] driveway so they can deal with it daily and then see how long before they asked for it 

to be removed. 

 

Also the best thing that has been done for Maple Drive for a long time was having it swept 

right after the stop bump was removed, if Dunes City can have this done say a couple of 

times a year that would help out a lot. 

 

A COPY OF MR. FOWLER’S WRITTEN STATEMENT IS ON FILE AT CITY HALL. 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills read a summary of a March 11, 2019, telephone con-

versation she had with Mr. Erinn Holmes, a Maple Drive resident: 

 

Erinn Holmes lives near the end of Maple Drive. When this issue was first brought up, he 

agreed that installation of a speed bump on Maple Drive would be a good idea, since he 

had been trying to get the Graham traffic (making a point that the vehicles speeding up 

Maple are not always David Graham, but often his children or friends of his children) to 

slow down for some time. Now, however, since Richard Palmer swept the street (much of 

the gravel always ends up on Erinn’s property), and since both Richard and the City Ad-

ministrator have spoken to Mr. Graham, Erinn believes that Mr. Graham and the kids and 

friends are all making an effort to remember to slow down. Especially now that the gravel 

has been cleared off the road and they no longer have to get a ‘running start’ to get up the 

hill. 

 

For these reasons, and since he witnessed his neighbor rudely yelling at both the Graham 

vehicle drivers and the UPS driver, he believes that the speed bumps are not necessary. 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 6 of 10 

A COPY OF MS. MILLS’ TRANSCRIPT IS ON FILE AT CITY HALL. 

 

Council President Meyer recognized Mr. David Graham, a Maple Drive resident, who ex-

plained that he did not own a gun shop, his son Nathan did, and Nathan no longer uses his 

backyard target range. He also explained that Nathan no longer lives at the residence and 

that he has spoken to his younger son, Shawn, about speeding and traffic and Shawn has 

agreed to keep both down. Mr. Graham noted that he did not object to a speed bump, but 

his driveway is steep and some vehicles have to have a running start to get up the hill.  

 

Mr. Graham went on to point out that there is no speed limit sign, he has been driving at 

about 20-25 miles per hour, but the City should find out what the speed limit is and post it. 

(01:40:30) 

 

Council President Meyer closed the public hearing at 7:48 pm. 

 

There was discussion among the Councilors. Councilor Snow suggested finding out what 

the speed limit is and posting signage. Councilor Montgomery agreed. Councilor Orr  

noted that the residents did not have a consensus of opinion on whether or not speed 

bumps should be installed, but he agreed that speed limit signage should be posted. He 

suggested that Councilors drive on Maple and Erhart to review the terrain, if they have not 

already done so. There was some discussion about installing a grate across Maple Drive 

instead of a speed bump, further discussion about the City’s liability in the event of an ac-

cident and there is no speed deterrent, and what type of speed bump would be appropriate.  

 

Mr. Graham shared a video on his phone with Councilors that showed the general area in 

question. Council President Meyer agreed with the concern about the type of speed bump, 

if any, to install. He suggested speed limit signs as an immediate action, and asked City 

Administrator/Recorder to find out what the County limit is.  

 

Councilor Montgomery made a motion to install a speed limit sign at the entrance to 

Erhart Road and another on Maple Drive.  

 

Council President Meyer clarified that he would like to see signage facing in both direc-

tions on Erhart and Maple, for a total of four signs on two posts. There was some discus-

sion about the types of speed bumps that could be installed. Council President Meyer sug-

gested tabling further discussion about speed bumps until Councilors had had a chance to 

drive through the area. 

 

Councilor Orr seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

Councilors agreed to schedule a Special Session for Thursday, March 21, at 5:00 pm to 

further discuss speed bumps on Maple Drive. (02:03:00) 

 

 

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 7 of 10 

9. CITIZEN INPUT ON ITEMS NOT DISCUSSED IN PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Council President Meyer recognized Mr. Aaron Bowen, who distributed copies of a letter he 

wrote to the Council and noted that he had some concerns about a forty-acre development that 

was going in at the end of Little Woahink Drive. Among his concerns: If the property was not 

developable in the past, what had changed to make it developable now; will a two-inch pipe 

for water be adequate; if a water storage tank is proposed, how will safety and environmental 

concerns be addressed; what is being done to address erosion control on the steep slopes of 

the property; and, how is the installation of septic systems being addressed since the area is in 

an area determined to be unsuitable for subsurface sewage treatment.  

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that a Court Order mandated that the develop-

ment be approved. New property owners who are developing the property have been very co-

operative in meeting the development conditions of approval imposed by the Court Order and 

would cooperate with any others that may be imposed by the City going forward. She also 

noted that the new plans call for building only fifteen homes, not the twenty-eight originally 

proposed. She also explained that the water storage tanks and the delivery system will be op-

erated by South Coast Water District. She encouraged Mr. Bowen and other residents to con-

tact her if they have concerns. (02:15:30) 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Siltcoos River Trail Clean Up 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that State and federal agencies have given 

permission for City residents to clear the river as long as no material is actually removed 

from it. She is working on completing a temporary permit that is required.   

 

B. Final Presentations of Sustainable City Year Program Passive Energy Project at UO on 

Tuesday, March 19, from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that the presentation was about the vertical 

evacuation facility study made by UO students.  

 

C. Appointment of Member to the Water Quality Committee 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills reported that there were two applicants but only one 

member vacancy and she suggested that one of the applicants could be appointed as a  

volunteer water tester. Council President Meyer pointed out that Mr. Richard Briggs’ ap-

plication indicated that he was interested in water testing, and Ms. Patricia Briggs had no 

preference so she could be appointed as a Committee member. (02:17:28) 

 

Councilor Snow made a motion to approve. Councilor Montgomery seconded the 

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 8 of 10 

D. Ordinance No. 250 Regarding Building Permit Program 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that the draft Ordinance was presented for 

informational purposes, there is still work to be done to finalize it for consideration. She 

asked Councilors to send her recommendations for changes. 

 

E. Ordinance No. 251 Declaring the Feeding of Wildlife in the Dunes City Limits to Be A 

Nuisance 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that a public hearing was not scheduled but 

there could be some discussion and a first reading. 

 

Council President Meyer recognized Mr. John Scott, a Dunes City resident, who spoke in 

favor of such an Ordinance because of the proliferation of deer in the City. He noted that 

he witnessed many residents feeding deer by hand. He pointed out that while it is not un-

lawful in the State of Oregon to feed wildlife, many cities have adopted bans for the safety 

and welfare of their residents. (02:22:40) 

 

There was some discussion about how the City would enforce the new Nuisance Code if it 

is adopted.  

 

Council President Meyer announced, “A proposed Ordinance requires two readings before 

it is enacted. Dunes City Charter Section 34(3) provides that both readings may be read by 

title only: (a) if no Council member present at the meeting requests it be read in full or (b) 

if a copy of the ordinance is provided for each Council member and all requirements for 

posting and advertisement have been met.” 

 

Council President Meyer asked if all requirements for posting and advertisement had been 

met and City Administrator/Recorder Mills said that they had. (02:26:54) Council Presi-

dent Meyer asked if any Councilor desired the Ordinance be read in full. None did. 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to read Ordinance 251 by title only. Councilor Mallen 

seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

Council President Meyer read aloud the title of Ordinance No. 251, “An Ordinance 

amending Chapter 91 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances entitled ‘Nuisances’ by add-

ing a new section 91.03(C) prohibiting the feeding of deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, 

and/or wolf within the City Limits of Dunes City.” 

 

F. Investigate Means by Which City Can Have Say in How Siltcoos Dam Is Operated 

 

(02:28:47) City Administrator/Recorder Mills reported that this item would require hiring 

an attorney. She asked if the Council wished her to do that and proceed. 

 

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 9 of 10 

Councilor Orr made a motion to investigate means by which the City can have a say 

in how Siltcoos Dam is operated. Councilor Snow seconded the motion. The motion 

passed by unanimous vote. 
 

Council President Meyer noted that in other meetings, residents had expressed interest in 

some sort of City control or input about how the dam is operated. 

 

G. Resolution No. 2019-01 Regarding Approval of Submission of Grant Application to  

 Oregon State Parks and Recreation Local Government Grant Program for Property  

 Acquisition 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that the purpose of the Resolution was to au-

thorize her to submit the grant application for funding to purchase land for Rebecca’s 

Trail. 

 

Councilor Mallen made a motion to approve Resolution Series 2019, Number 1. 

Councilor Orr seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

H. Approve Prize Money Award for Organization that Brings the Most Volunteers to the Tri-

athlon 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to approve a prize money award in the amount of $250 

for the organization that brings the most volunteers to work at the Triathlon. Coun-

cilor Mallen seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

There was none. 

 

12. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Adoption of Dunes City Goals for 2018-2019 Fiscal Year 

 

Council President Meyer referred Councilors to copies of the Goals that were included in 

their meeting packets. Councilor Montgomery questioned the benefit to citizens of requir-

ing all businesses, not just contractors, to obtain City business licenses. 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to adopt the Dunes City Goals for 2018-2019 Fiscal 

Year. Councilor Mallen seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

STAFF NOTE: These should be the 2019-2020 Goals for Dunes City. 

 

B. City of Florence’s Policy for Official City Use of Social Media 

 

Council President Meyer suggested tabling discussion until the April meeting. 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190313  Page 10 of 10 

C. Sponsorships for 7
th

 Annual Triathlon and Duathlon 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills reminded Councilors to work on acquiring sponsors for 

the Triathlon, three per Councilor. 

   

13. REPORTS 

 

A. Mayor’s Report: Since Mayor Forsythe was absent, there was no report.  

  

B. Community Center Report: Since Councilor Wells was absent, there was no report. 

 

C. Water Quality Report: Council President Meyer referred Councilors to copies of the  

February 26 Water Quality Committee meeting minutes and the water test results from 

March 5. Councilor Snow reported that she went with the water testers in March and more 

in depth testing will begin on Siltcoos Lake in May with a second team of testers. 

 

D. Public Works Maintenance Supervisor’s Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills noted 

that the discussion about Maple Drive was held earlier in the meeting.  

 

E. Emergency Services Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills reminded Councilors that 

the Emergency Expo will be held March 30 at the Florence Events Center.  

 

F. City Administrator/Recorder/Planning/Staff Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills 

noted that her report was included in the Councilors’ meeting packets.  

 

14. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

There was no discussion.  

 

15. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Council President Meyer adjourned the meeting at 8:48 pm. There was no motion and no vote 

taken. 

 

APPROVED BY THE DUNES CITY COUNCIL ON THE 10
h 

DAY OF APRIL 2019 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Forsythe, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jamie Mills, City Administrator/Recorder  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190321  Page 1 of 3 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MEETING MINUTES ~ DRAFT 

MARCH 21, 2019 AT 5:00 PM 

City Hall ~ 82877 Spruce St., Westlake, OR 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Mayor Robert Forsythe called the Thursday, March 21, 2019, special session of the Dunes City 

Council to order at 5:00 pm.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Roll Call was taken by City Administrator/Recorder Jamie Mills. 

 

Present: Mayor Robert Forsythe, Council President Sheldon Meyer, Councilor Duke 

Wells, Councilor Tom Mallen, and Councilor Robert Orr.  

 

Absent: Councilor Alan Montgomery. 

 

Absent and Excused: Councilor Susan Snow. 

 

Also Present: Planning Secretary Rapunzel Oberholtzer, several Dunes City  

 residents, and Siuslaw News reporter Jared Anderson.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

All who were present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Councilor Mallen made a motion to approve the Agenda. Councilor Orr seconded the 

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS / CORRESPONDENCE 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills read aloud from the list of announcements on the agenda 

and those distributed to Councilors prior to the start of the meeting: 

 

A. Dunes City is looking for volunteers to help out with the 7
th

 annual Dunes City Triath-

lon and Duathlon. Volunteers are urged to register early so they have the best chance to 

get their first choice for their assigned location. 

 

These proceedings of the Dunes City Council were 

recorded and are on file at Dunes City Hall. Upon 

approval by the City Council, these minutes will be 

available online at www.DunesCity.com  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190321  Page 2 of 3 

B. The Emergency Expo will be held at the Florence Events Center on March 30. Watch 

the Siuslaw News for details. 

 

C. The first public hearing on an Ordinance to adopt new Flood Damage Prevention Code 

will be held before the Planning Commission on April 25, 2019, at 6:00 pm and on 

May 8 at the City Council. 

 

D. “The Wall That Heals” will be on display at the Siuslaw Middle School, 2525 Oak 

Street in Florence, Thursday, April 4, to Sunday, April 7, 24-hours a day. This is a 375-

foot, three-quarter scale replica of the Vietnam Veterans Memorial in Washington DC 

bearing the names of the more than 58,000 men and women who made the ultimate  

sacrifice in Vietnam.  

 

6. CITIZEN INPUT ON ITEMS NOT DISCUSSED IN PUBLIC HEARING 
 

There was none. 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Consideration of Speed Bumps on Maple Drive 

 

Mayor Forsythe reminded everyone that this subject was discussed in the March 13 

City Council meeting. He pointed out that the Oregon DMV handbook specifies speed 

limits as 15 mph on a single-lane gravel or paved road, and 25 mph on a double-lane 

paved road, unless there is a school zone where the speed limit is 20 mph. He explained 

that he thought the situation was a safety or nuisance issue in the neighborhood, and he 

suggested that the City send a letter to Sheriff Trapp and one to the State Police inform-

ing them that there is a community safety issue and also send letters to the residents in 

the area informing them that if there are more complaints, the Sheriff will be called. He 

went on to explain that this approach would save the City from investing in speed 

bumps and additional signage. (00:06:53) 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that she confirmed with ODOT the road is 

19-feet or so wide and the speed limit would be 25 mph.  

 

Council President Meyer explained that he did not object to a speed limit sign as a re-

minder to residents, but after driving the road he could not see a need for speed bumps. 

Mr. Rory Hammond, who was in the audience, noted that during the March 13 Council 

meeting, one of the residents complained about speeding at the bottom of Maple Drive 

where the mailboxes were located and asked for a speed bump to be placed there. 

(00:14:30)  

 

There was further discussion in which there was some debate about installation of 

speed bumps. Councilor Orr reminded everyone that in the March 13 meeting, Counci-

lors agreed to speed limit signage. Mayor Forsythe suggested that the letter he proposed 

should include a caution to residents explaining that the City would take no further  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20190321  Page 3 of 3 

action unless it received more complaints. There was some discussion about alternative 

speed limiting options, including a “Slow Children Playing” sign.  

 

Following discussion, it was agreed to install two 25-mph speed limit signs, one speed 

bump at the bottom of the road by the mailboxes and one “Slow Children Playing” 

sign, as well as sending the letters suggested by Mayor Forsythe. (00:34:00-35:00)  

 

8. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

There was no discussion.  

 

9. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Mallen seconded the motion. The 

motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

Mayor Forsythe adjourned the meeting at 5:36 pm.  

 

 

 

APPROVED BY THE DUNES CITY COUNCIL ON THE 10
h 

DAY OF APRIL 2019 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Forsythe, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jamie Mills, City Administrator/Recorder  



Campbell Productions $390.00
$189.31

$1,777.08
Century Link $310.33
Charter Business $71.05
County Transfer & Recycling $24.51
DCBS Quarterly State Surcharge $962.76
MCI/Verizon $45.75
Northwest Code Professionals $749.96
Pest Tech $80.00
Siuslaw News (notices) $147.21
Siuslaw School District 97J $0.00
Secretary of State (annual municipality fee) $150.00
Speer Hoyt LLC  General $274.00
Speer Hoyt LLC Building Program Issue $0.00
Speer Hoyt LLC Street/drainage issues $1,335.00
Total Speer Hoyt LLC $1,609.00
Terri English (Dunes City Home Services) $160.00
True Cut Engraving $27.50
U S Bank $256.40

Office Supplies & Postage $196.40
Travel $60.00

Vend West $8.50
Wells Fargo $185.25
Wobbe &  Associates $513.75
Staff Wages $5,118.64
PERS $3,240.75

$16,017.75 approved per motion, TOTAL $16,017.75

BILLS OF THE SESSION: 3/06/2019 thru 4/03/2019

                Mayor / Council President

Above bills in the amount of

Central Lincoln P.U.D. (City Hall)
Central Lincoln P.U.D. (Street Lights)

ATTEST: ______________________________________



$0.00
Business License $765.00
Copy Charges $5.75
Donations $0.00
Triathlon $500.00
Fines $0.00
Franchise Fee, Cable TV $0.00
Franchise Fee, PUD $8,562.52
Franchise Fee, Telephone $2,072.40
Lien Searches $100.00
Permits, Conditional Use $0.00
Permits, Boundary Line Adjustment (PUD) $0.00
Permits, Demolition $0.00
Permits, Electrical $0.00
Permits, Excavating & Grading & Driveway $37.00
Permits, Manufactured Home Fees $0.00
Permits, Mechanical $69.00
Permits, Other (Inspections, LUCS, No Brushing, etc.) $70.00
Permits, Penalties $0.00
Permits, Plan Check Fees $105.95
Permits, Plumbing $97.00
Permits, Right of Way Use $0.00
Permits, Structural $163.00
Permits, Building Surcharge $125.00
Permits, State Surcharge $39.48
Permits, Vegetation / Tree Removal $25.00
Permits, Refunds $0.00

PERMITS TOTAL $731.43
ODOT Small Cities Grant $0.00

$50.00
Tax, Cigarette $0.00
Tax, Liquor (OLCC) $1,348.53
Tax, Oregon State Highway Apportionment $7,394.72
Tax, Lane County Motel Fund $212.65
Tax, School Excise $0.00
Water Rights Application Fees $0.00
Water Admin Fees $100.00

TOTAL $21,843.00
 

Septic Inspections

RECEIPTS OF THE SESSION: 3/7/2019 thru 4/03/2019

Building Rental







dc_Ord 251 re Feeding of Wildlife 2019.03.13 Page 1 
 

CITY OF DUNES CITY 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

ORDINANCE NO. 251 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 91 OF THE DUNES CITY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES ENTITLED “NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 
91.03(C) PROHIBITING THE FEEDING OF DEER, RACOON, BEAR, 
COUGAR, COYOTE, AND/OR WOLF WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF 
DUNES CITY. 
 
 
WHEREAS, feeding or otherwise domesticating deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, 
and/or wolf creates public health hazards by increasing traffic hazards, attracting 
predatory wildlife, and creating environment for their aggressive protection of territory; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, feeding deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf frequently results 
in damage to landscaping, fences, and other structures in the City and property by 
consumption of private landscaping, and sometimes results in personal injury to persons 
and companion animals; and 
 
WHEREAS, feeding deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf interferes with 
accepted wildlife management practices; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF DUNES CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Section 91.03 entitled “Nuisances Affecting Public Health” is hereby 
amended by adding the following language: 
 
“(C) No person shall knowingly place, deposit, distribute, store or scatter food, 
garbage or any other attractant so as to knowingly constitute a lure, attraction or 
enticement for deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf.” 
 
Section 2. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and that holding 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3. OTHER REMEDIES.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as 
limiting any judicial remedies that the City may have, at law or in equity, for 
enforcement of this Ordinance.  Non-exclusive remedies for enforcement are all those 
available under State and County laws including seizure of property, civil and criminal 
penalties. 



dc_Ord 251 re Feeding of Wildlife 2019.03.13 Page 2 
 

 
Section 4. CAPTIONS.  The captions to sections throughout this Ordinance are 
intended solely to facilitate reading and reference to the sections and provisions 
contained herein.  Such captions shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 5. SCRIVENER’S ERRORS.  Any scrivener’s errors in this Ordinance 
may be corrected by Resolution of the City Council. 
 
Section 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) calendar days after adoption in accordance 
with the Dunes City Charter. 
 
 
Passed at the first reading in a regular meeting of the City Council of Dunes City, 
Oregon, on this 13th day of March, 2019. 
 
Ayes: ________ Nays:  ________ Abstain: _______ Absent: _______ 
 
Passed at the second reading and placed on final passage, and adopted by the City 
Council of Dunes City, Oregon, on this 13th day of March, 2019. 
 
Ayes: ________ Nays:  ________ Abstain: _______ Absent: _______ 
 
DATED THIS 13th DAY OF MARCH, 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
ROBERT FORSYTHE, MAYOR 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
     ___________________________________ 
     JAMIE MILLS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 



Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 
82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATION: 
National Child Abuse Prevention Month 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF OREGON ) 
County of Lane ) ss. 
City of Dunes City ) 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, more than 80,000 reports of child abuse or neglect were made in Oregon between 
October 2016 and September 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, child abuse prevention is a community as well as a personal responsibility and 
finding solutions depends on the involvement of all citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, communities must take steps to promote programs that benefit children and their 
families; and  
 
WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention programs are more likely to succeed when there 
are partnerships among cities, schools, religious organizations, law enforcement agencies, and 
the business community; and  
 
WHEREAS, everyone in the community should become more aware of child abuse prevention 
while assisting parents to raise their children in a safe, nurturing environment; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Robert Forsythe, do hereby proclaim the month of April 2019 
to be Child Abuse Prevention Month in Dunes City, Oregon, and urge all citizens to work 
together to help reduce child abuse and neglect in the years to come.  
 
Signed this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Robert Forsythe, Mayor 













































Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 1 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

CONTRACT for LEGAL SERVICES 

 

Parties, Scope: 

 

This agreement is made between Dunes City, hereafter referred to as ‘Client”, and Schroeder 

Law Offices, PC, and its agents and employees, hereafter referred to as “Schroeder” or 

“Attorney.” Client hereby retains Schroeder to act as special water rights counsel for Client. 

  

Legal Fees: 

 

Client will pay Schroeder and its agents and employees according to the hourly fee schedule set 

out below.  

Hourly Fee Schedule 

 

Shareholders/Partners ....................................................$275.00 to $450.00 

Attorneys ........................................................................$175.00 to $350.00 

Paralegals or Law Clerks .................................................$70.00 to $250.00 

Project Assistants .............................................................$50.00 to $150.00 

Travel Rate .....................................................................$110.00 to $150.00 

 

 

Schroeder will begin work on Client’s case upon receipt of Client’s signature on this contract 

and payment of any required retainer or other specified amount. This agreement may be 

modified in writing only if signed by both Client and Attorney. 

 

Retention of Attorney and Delegation of Services: 

 

Please note that “Attorneys” includes attorneys on contract with Schroeder, who are not 

necessarily employees of Schroeder, but whose work is supervised by a Schroeder Law Offices, 

P.C. Shareholder (“Shareholder”). Billing for contract Attorneys is incorporated into Schroeder’s 

invoices at the rates stated above. 

 

A Shareholder will supervise all work on this matter, although other members of the firm may 

assist from time to time. Wherever possible, the Shareholder will delegate tasks that can be 

performed by other personnel at lower hourly rates commensurate with their experience and 

abilities, subject to appropriate supervision. 

 

Costs and Expenses: 

 

In addition to attorney fees, Client shall pay all costs and expenses incurred by Attorney 

including, but not limited to, filing fees, service fees, court reporter fees for deposition and 

hearings, trial court fees, photocopying costs, long distance telephone calls, messenger and other 

delivery fees, excessive postage, witness fees, consultants’ fees, expert witness fees, mileage 

fees, and other necessary court and office costs. Client authorizes Attorney to incur all 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 2 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

reasonable costs and to hire any consultants or expert witnesses reasonably necessary in 

Attorney’s judgment. From time to time at Attorney’s request Client shall make such expense 

payments directly to a third party, especially if the amount is large. Client shall also pay certain 

office services such as computer charges for legal research, employee overtime and other costs 

that Attorney incurs as a direct result of representing Client. 

 

Invoices and Acceptance of Charges: 

 

Schroeder will send Client periodic invoices indicating attorney’s fees and costs incurred. Client 

agrees to pay each of Attorney’s invoices when due. Accounts more than 30 days in arrears are 

charged interest at 9% per annum.  

 

Invoices will be deemed to be accepted and affirmed by Client unless objected to in writing 

within 10 days of the date of the invoice by sending an email, facsimile or letter to the Firm 

Administrator noting the objectionable items. The Firm Administrator will try to resolve any 

billing objections prior to the close of the billing cycle in which the objection is made. 

 

Lien: 

 

At any time Client’s account is in arrears Attorney may place an attorney lien on Client’s file 

pending complete resolution of the outstanding amount. The lien allows Attorney to retain 

Client’s papers and documents in Attorney’s possession until the debt has been paid. During the 

course of representation, Attorney agrees to provide client copies of Client’s file as it is created; 

thus any lien is for a second copy of the client file. 

 

Award of Attorney Fees: 

 

Any attorney’s fees obtained by Attorney through court order in this case shall be credited to 

Client after payment of any fees and costs due Attorney. If a fee is agreed upon or awarded that 

is larger than the amount paid and owed then after all credits and reimbursements to Client the 

remainder shall go to Attorney as part of attorney’s reasonable fee. However, Client is 

responsible for paying any attorney’s fees and expense owed to Attorney, even if there is a 

judgment outstanding for such fees. 

 

Client File: 

 

Attorney may elect not to save to Client’s file or provide copies of personal notes, drafts, and 

other incomplete work product.  

 

Copies of file: 

 

Client will receive electronically, via email or facsimile, client copies of all documents that are 

prepared or received by Attorney during Attorney’s representation. Client agrees to read all 

documents given to Client by Attorney. These client copies comprise Client’s file. At the 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 3 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

conclusion of Attorney’s work, Client will not be entitled to another copy of Client‘s file unless 

Client pays for the copy including staff time and copy charges.  

 

Document Retention: 

 

Attorney holds no original Client documents. All original Client documents provided to Attorney 

are promptly processed to Client’s electronic file and returned to Client as soon as possible. 

Attorney will retain a copy of Client’s file in electronic form for a period of seven (7) years from 

the date of this agreement after which it may be destroyed. Client will not receive further notice 

prior to the destruction of these files. 

 

Email / Electronic Communication: 

 

Attorney prefers sending client copies and billings electronically wherever possible. If Client 

elects to receive client copies and billings by regular mail Client may be charged for this service. 

If Attorney is representing Client on a personal matter, Attorney recommends that Client provide 

a personal email address, not a work related email address. This is the best way to preserve the 

attorney client privilege. Attorney recommends that Client does not read, download, or respond 

to attorney-client email while at work. The safest course of action is for Client to use Client’s 

own computer or device, not an employer’s computer equipment, to access personal email 

– even if Client is looking at a personal email account stored in the cloud.  

 

Check one: 

 

____ Email Address _____________________________________________________, or  

 

____ Fax Number ______________________________________________________  

 

Discharge of Attorney: 

 

Client shall at all times have the right to terminate Attorney’s services upon written notice 

effective when received by Attorney. Unless specifically agreed by Attorney and Client, 

Attorney will provide no further services and advance no further costs on Client’s behalf after 

receipt of such notice unless Attorney is required by ethical or legal reasons to continue 

representing Client. If Attorney is required to continue in representation Client will be liable for 

any fees and costs incurred. 

 

Withdrawal of Attorney: 

 

Attorney shall at all times have the right to terminate representation of Client upon written notice 

if Client does not pay Attorney’s fees and costs as billed or replenish any retainer required, if 

Attorney determines that continued representation of Client would be unethical or inappropriate, 

or if Attorney has another basis for termination consistent with Attorney’s professional duties to 

Client. 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 4 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

 

Should Client fail to follow Attorney’s instruction, misrepresent or fail to disclose material facts, 

fail to pay Client’s account in full within 30 days of billing, or fail to maintain the balance of 

Client’s trust account as agreed, Attorney is authorized to suspend performing services and 

promptly move to withdraw as Client’s counsel, to file for fee arbitration, to file suit, and to take 

such other steps as Attorney deems appropriate to collect the balance. Client will execute any 

documents necessary to allow Attorney to withdraw at that point. Client further agrees to be 

responsible for any costs of collection incurred by Attorney, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 

Tax Advice and Disclaimer of Guarantee: 

 

No advice is given regarding tax consequences. Client agrees to seek tax advice elsewhere and to 

hold Attorney harmless therefrom. No guarantees have been made to Client by Attorney. 

Specifically, no guarantees have been made about the outcome of any representation on Client’s 

behalf or the total fees and expenses. Any expressions relative thereto are only opinions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS AREA INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 5 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

The undersigned has read the foregoing Legal Services Agreement and understands its 

terms and those set forth in the attached Addendum, and agrees to be liable, jointly and 

severally, for all obligations under this agreement. Signature by facsimile or email on this 

agreement will constitute Client’s original signature and Client’s acceptance of the terms of 

this Agreement.  

 

The terms of this contract are valid only if signed and received by Schroeder Law Offices, P.C. 

by May 3, 2019 

 

 

4/3/19 

 

 
Date    For Schroeder Law Offices, PC 

Laura A. Schroeder; Therese A. Ure; Sarah R. Liljefelt;  

V. Scott Borison 

 

 

____________________ _________________________________ 

Date    Mayor Robert Forsythe 

    For Dunes City  

 

 

 

 

 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 6 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

ADDENDUM 

 

Invoices and Billing: 

 

Amounts listed in the above hourly fee schedule may be increased without notice by an amount 

not to exceed 10% at any time after the anniversary date of this contract and may be increased in 

like amount no more frequently than annually thereafter.  

 

Schroeder’s fees are based on the time spent by its staff in performing legal services including 

telephone calls, emails, conferences, travel, court appearances, research and investigation and 

preparing letters, pleadings, briefs, agreements and other documents. Services are billed for time 

spent in multiples of 6 minute increments, or 0.1 hours, with a minimum charge of 0.2 hours 

billed per item related to any client matter. Services rendered in connection with this matter prior 

to Client signing this contract are subject to the terms of this contract. 

 

Personnel move over time to the next higher level and Attorney may judge that their work has 

improved to a degree justifying an adjustment in their hourly rate within the ranges specified by 

the table above. Accordingly, hourly rates for individuals may be changed within their applicable 

range without further notice. The rate within the specified range established by this agreement 

charged for any individual timekeeper is reflected in Attorney’s monthly billing statement next 

to the initials of that individual timekeeper. 

 

Proposals from Client, or Client’s representative, for a change in rate(s), generic fee reduction, or 

professional or courtesy discounts may be approved only by the management committee.  

Individual attorneys including a Shareholder or the Firm Administrator are not authorized as 

agents for the firm to accept any proposal for such adjustments without the management 

committee's authority which will only be given after the management committee has reviewed 

and approved the proposal. 

 

Certain items on Client’s invoice may be designated “no charge,” or credit may be given for 

certain work. Attorney has the discretion to reverse any credit items or “no charge” designations 

until the invoice is paid. 

 

Fee Arbitration: 

 

Client hereby agrees that any dispute about the fees and costs charged by Attorney under this 

Agreement will be submitted to arbitration under the rules of the Oregon State Bar Fee 

Arbitration Program, unless Attorney and Client agree otherwise in writing, and that judgment 

may be entered on any award. The sole issues to be decided in the arbitration are the amount of 

fees and costs owed to Attorney or to be refunded by Attorney to Client.  

 

 

 

 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 7 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

Legal Services Not Covered By This Contract: 

 

If Client wishes that Attorney provide any legal services not covered by this agreement a 

separate written agreement between Attorney and Client will be required. In addition, and in the 

event that this or other matters related to this Agreement ultimately require administrative or 

civil litigation Attorney may require an adjustment in rates consistent with Attorney’s then 

prevailing Hourly Fee Schedule for litigation before proceeding with such litigation. 

 

 

 



Schroeder Law Offices, PC Contract for Legal Services 

4/3/2019 3:33 PM Page 8 

 
{P0431238; 0500.00 MRF } 

 

New Client Information 

 
TODAY’S DATE______________ 

 

 

 
 

Name____________________________________ SS or Tax ID #______________________ 

 

Other Contact Person_________________________________________________________ 

 

Home Street Address__________________________________________________________ 

 

City/State_____________________________________________Zip___________________ 

 

Mailing Address______________________________________________________________ 

 

City/State_____________________________________________Zip___________________ 

 

Telephone: Home__________________ Work ___________________ Fax_______________ 

 

Other Phone ______________________ E-Mail Address _____________________________ 

 

Company Name or Employer___________________________________________________ 

 

Client’s Birthday____________________ 

 

ADVERSE PARTIES: 
Name(s):_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PARTIES of INTEREST 

Name(s):_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

OTHER INFORMATION 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I prefer to communicate by Telephone (    )  Email (    )   or Correspondence (    )  



Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 
82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 

Emergency Services Report to City Council 
April 10, 2019 ~ Prepared by Jamie Mills 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I attended the March 18, 2019 meeting of the West Lane Emergency Operations Group that 
was held at Siuslaw Valley Fire and Rescue Station #1.   
 
Megan gave a status report on the Hwy 101 road improvements, which are expected to 
continue through October. A Work Plan and Procedures Workshop was scheduled for 
Wednesday, April 17th, at 10:00 a.m.  Frank Nulty was not present to make a CERT report. 
 
The Agenda and packet materials for the WLEOG meeting are included in this report. 
 
The next WLEOG meeting will be held on Monday, April 15th at 10:00 a.m.  The location of the 
meeting is to be announced. 



WEST LANE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS GROUP
AGENDA

 SIUSLAW VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE 
2625 Hwy 101 

Florence OR 97439 

March 18, 2019                                                                                             10:00 A.M. 

Members

City of Florence    Confederated Tribes of Coos, Lower Umpqua & Siuslaw Indians    Dunes City 

Mapleton Fire District     Peace Harbor Medical Center     Port of Siuslaw 

Siuslaw Valley Fire and Rescue     Western Lane Ambulance  

Associate Members

      American Red Cross     Apex Helicopter     Greentrees Village Florence Area Chamber 

     Oregon Coast Humane Society   Florence Emergency Cold Weather Shelter   Lane Community College 

Lane County Public Health   Oregon Department of Transportation   Oregon Episcopal Diocese 

Oregon Parks and Recreation Oregon State HSPR Program Senior and Disabled Services 

                      Siuslaw School District    United States Coast Guard   West Lane ARES/RACES    Camp Baker

Call to order 

Roll Call/Establishment of Quorum  

Approval of Minutes: Of the Regular WLEOG meeting of January 28, 2019 deferred from last month, 

and approval of February 25, 2019. 

Reports & Discussion Items:

Chair’s Report 

2019 Work Plan & Procedures Workshop 

CERT Report 

Financial Statements Profit and Loss Budget vs. Actual, Year to date (2018-2019) Bank account 

register.

Other Business/Round Table Next Meeting: Monday April 15, 2019 Location TBD 



WEST LANE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS GROUP                                             

MINUTES January 28, 2019 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Siuslaw Valley Fire & Rescue: Jim Dickerson 
WLA: Matt House 
CTCLUSI: Not Present 
Dunes City: Not Present 
City of Florence:  Megan Messmer 
Peace Health: Pat Kirby 
Mapleton Fire: Department: Not Present 
Port of Siuslaw: Not Present 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS:  
West Lane ARES/RACES: Present 
Greentrees:  Present 
American Red Cross: Not Present 
United States Coast Guard: Present 
Florence Area Chamber: Present 
Florence Emergency Cold Weather Shelter: Not Present 
Lane County Public Health:  Present 
Oregon Episcopal Diocese: Not Present 
Oregon Parks and Recreation:  Present 
Florence Area Humane Society:  Not Present 
Lane Community College:  Present 
Oregon Department of Transportation:  Not Present 
Oregon State HSPR Program: Not Present 
Senior and Disabled Services: Not Present 
Siuslaw School District: Not Present 
Apex Helicopter. Not Present 
Camp Baker: Present 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Megan Messmer @ 10:05 a.m. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Matt House made a motion and Pat Kirby seconded the motion to approve the minutes with a corrected 
typo from December 17, 2018 Meeting, Motion was then approved unanimously. 

Agenda Items:  

Chairs Report:  

 Updates, there are still a few IGA’s out unsigned. Megan Messmer updated EOC for Homeland Security State of City. City 
Hall will be moving in this week and will be open Feb. 6th. The City will have an open house on Feb. 15th, they are working 
on getting a Knox Box. Messmer gave a grant update and reports that we are in the running for the Safe Route to School 
Grant, and traffic calming devices. Messmer participated in the Emergency Manger Interviews. Pat Kirby suggests once 
the emergency manager is chosen that we invite them to a WLEOG, Kirby also stated that grant will be important. 

 2019 Work Plan and Procedures update, Messmer asked the group to bring thoughts and ideas on what needs to be updated to the next 
meeting workshop.



CERT Report: 
 Frank Nulty introduced Amber Hagens as the Public Outreach Coordinator Nulty updated the group on the Eagle Scott Project. Due to the 

time restraint for supplies, Nulty purchased enough supplies for 3 more water purification system’s and the hardware needed and is 
submitting a request for reimbursement. Once these water purification systems are put together Nulty will arrange for publicity. Pat Kirby 
asked where the water systems will be stored and also asked for written documentation. Nulty reports that one will be at the Boy Scout 
camp and Jim Dickerson will store one at station 4, Dickerson will bring a plan to the next WLEOG Meeting. Nulty reports the water source 
for the EOC will produce approximately 125 gal. and a second project will be for a deployable water source to be used where ever it is 
needed. Nulty provided a handout that contained information about earth movement insurance writer and a water purification handout. 

Other Business:  
 Lane County Public Health reports that the Flu is trending downward and that there are no local cases of measles currently. The vast majority of 

the measles are in Washington, with 36 confirmed cases 1 of which is in Oregon. 
 Pat Kirby reported that Dogami,met along with public works and the school district to discuss water and fuel storage.

FINANCIAL REPORT 
Current balance is $37,954.67; Bills paid since 12/17/2018 were $2,751.81 to; Coast Broadcasting $288.00; Central Lincoln $30.31; 
West Coast Media $100.00; Siuslaw News $372.00; RoadPost USA Inc.1,355.28; Day Wireless $546.24; VIASAT INC 59.98; 37.4% of the 
Budget has been expended YTD excluding Contingency. 

Future Agenda Business:

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned @ 11:05 a.m. by Megan Messmer  

The next scheduled WLEOG Meeting will be February 25, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m. at Florence City Hall. 

Mary Dimon 
Administrative Assistant  
Recording Secretary 



WEST LANE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS GROUP                                             

MINUTES February 25, 2019 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Siuslaw Valley Fire & Rescue: Not present 
WLA: Not present 
CTCLUSI: Brian DuBray 
Dunes City: Jamie Mills 
City of Florence:  Megan Messmer 
Peace Health: Pat Kirby 
Mapleton Fire: Department: Not Present 
Port of Siuslaw: Not Present 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS:  
West Lane ARES/RACES: Present 
Greentrees:  Present 
American Red Cross: Not Present 
United States Coast Guard: Not Present 
Florence Area Chamber: Not Present 
Florence Emergency Cold Weather Shelter: Not Present 
Lane County Public Health:  Not Present 
Oregon Episcopal Diocese: Not Present 
Oregon Parks and Recreation:  Not Present 
Florence Area Humane Society:  Not Present 
Lane Community College: Not Present 
Oregon Department of Transportation:  Not Present 
Oregon State HSPR Program: Not Present 
Senior and Disabled Services: Not Present 
Siuslaw School District: Not Present 
Apex Helicopter. Not Present 
Camp Baker: Present 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Megan Messmer @ 10:03 a.m. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Approval of January 28, 2019 minutes were deferred for approval at the March 18, 2019 meeting in order to 
have a quorum present. 

Agenda Items:  

Chairs Report:  

 Megan Messmer reports that Patence Winningham Lane County Emergency Manager was invited to this WLEOG meeting 
but could not make it due to other priorities and has been added to the email list for meeting packets and other WLEOG 
info. The work will begin work on the road’s revision project on March 4th and will go through Oct. 2019. The City will keep 
the community updated as the project goes forward. ODOT will update the police Departments. There will be no work 
during Rhody days beginning on Wednesday that week and going through Monday, this will be for other Holidays as well. 
The City will begin work at the Airports soon and will put out notices and updates. 

 Deferred to next months WLEOG meeting 2019 work plan and procedure workshop and the water supply storage. 

Expo Report: 

 Jenna Bartlett reports on the EXPO, Peace Health and Banner Bank are the main sponsors, she has a full line of 
speakers with only one spot left to fill and reports she has some good speakers lined up. Jenna is still working on 
getting some companies with supplies to attend. The expo will be promoted on Facebook, Siuslaw News and Coast 
Radio. 



CERT Report:   Frank Nulty was not present. 

Other Business:   
 Jamie Mills from Dune City reports that Dune City will work with U of O Sustainable City Program to design and plan evacuation plans for the 

building.
 Bob Pine reports that the satellite went out at the EOC with an additional charge of 90.00 for the service call, new parts were replaced on the 

things that could go wrong. The problem was the uplink transmitter at the dish and the modem has been replaced.

FINANCIAL REPORT 
Current balance is $35,083.71; Bills paid since 1/18/2019 were $2,874.36 to; Coast Broadcasting $288.00; Central Lincoln $30.38; 
Siuslaw News $372.00; Special Districts Insurance $2,124.00; VIASAT INC 59.98; 47.7% of the Budget has been expended YTD 
excluding Contingency. 

Future Agenda Business:

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned @ 10:37 a.m. by Megan Messmer  

The next scheduled WLEOG Meeting will be March 18, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m. at Siuslaw Valley Fire and Rescue. 

Mary Dimon 
Administrative Assistant  
Recording Secretary 









1 
 

City Administrator/City Recorder Report to City 
Council 
 
April 10, 2019 ~ Prepared by Jamie Mills 

 

 
 
There were 8 permits issued in March as follows:  1 structural, 2 mechanical, 1 plumbing, 2 
electrical, and 1 grading.  There was one vegetation removal in the shoreland zone permit 
issued for removal of a danger tree on Woahink Lake. 
  
The City continues to receive telephone calls from individuals who indicate they have received 
emails from the City with attached invoices or receipts for payments.  We want to emphasize that 
the City is not sending these emails and that people should not open any attachments to these 
emails.  The email list has been stolen, so at this point we have no way to stop the emails.  We 
suggest each time you receive one, to make sure you block the sender. 
 
The City is looking to hire a Permit Tech and an Administrative Assistant after the resignation of 
the individuals in those positions in late March.  The Permit Tech position is 32 hours a week 
and starts at $13.00 per hour.  The Admin Assistant position is 10 hours a week and starts at 
$12.00 per hour.  Resumes should be submitted either in person or via email to 
recorder@dunescityor.com.  If there is anyone who would like to volunteer to fill the positions 
during the candidate search, please give me a call at City Hall. 
 
Councilors and Planning Commission members are reminded to complete and submit their 
Annual Ethics Filing on line before April 15th. 
 
The final presentation on the SKYP vertical evacuation facility with passive energy was 
presented on March 19th.  I expect to get a written report in the near future. 
 
I attended the Northwest Regional Managers Meeting held in Florence on March 21st. 
 
The Town Hall meeting on water right issues was a successful, informative meeting.  It appears 
that the City will pursue another extension of their permit and move forward with getting all 
points of diversion listed on the permit.  I have contacted a water law attorney Laura Schroeder 
and discussed issues with her.  She will submit an Agreement for Services containing a scope of 
work for consideration by the Council in the near future. 
 
Budget Committee meetings will begin on Tuesday, April 30th, and will continue every Tuesday 
thereafter until the Budget Committee has approved a FY 2019-2020 budget to present to the 
City Council. 
 
Signs have been ordered for placement of Maple Drive and Erhart Road.  The installation of a 
speed bump will have to wait until the weather is more stable. 
 

mailto:recorder@dunescityor.com


2 
 

The Local Government Grant Program application to acquire land for Rebecca’s Trail to connect 
the North Lake area with Westlake was submitted to the Oregon Department of Parks and 
Recreation on March 28th.  We have received notice confirming receipt of the application and 
await review results. 
 
We are still looking for volunteers and sponsors for the 2019 Oregon Dunes Triathlon and 
Duathlon. This year’s event will be held Saturday, June 8th, and it is not too early to register to 
volunteer to help.  Early registration can help a person get the job they want in the place they 
want!  The City is also looking for sponsors for the event.  Sponsorships range from $100 up to 
$5,000, so there is a level available for every business.  With over 300 participants and all of 
their family and friends attending, the event brings in a lot of people to the Florence area – many 
of whom stay and play for the entire weekend! 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
       Jamie Mills, City Administrator/Recorder 




















	dc_agenda_cc_2019.04.10
	Dunes City Council ~ Regular Meeting
	Wednesday, April 10, 2019 ~ 6:00 pm

	dc_minutes_cc_20190313_draft
	dc_minutes_ccSS_20190321_draft
	Bills of the Session 4.10.2019
	Sheet1

	Receipts of the Session 3.7.2019 thru 4.3.2019
	Sheet1

	March 2019 Profit and Loss Report
	DC_Ord #251 Prohibiting Feeding of Wildlife Chapter 91
	CITY OF DUNES CITY
	LANE COUNTY, OREGON
	ORDINANCE NO. 251
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 91 OF THE DUNES CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 91.03(C) PROHIBITING THE FEEDING OF DEER, RACOON, BEAR, COUGAR, COYOTE, AND/OR WOLF WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF DUNES CITY.
	WHEREAS, feeding or otherwise domesticating deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf creates public health hazards by increasing traffic hazards, attracting predatory wildlife, and creating environment for their aggressive protection of territ...
	WHEREAS, feeding deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf frequently results in damage to landscaping, fences, and other structures in the City and property by consumption of private landscaping, and sometimes results in personal injury to per...
	WHEREAS, feeding deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf interferes with accepted wildlife management practices;
	NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF DUNES CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1. Section 91.03 entitled “Nuisances Affecting Public Health” is hereby amended by adding the following language:
	“(C) No person shall knowingly place, deposit, distribute, store or scatter food, garbage or any other attractant so as to knowingly constitute a lure, attraction or enticement for deer, raccoon, bear, cougar, coyote, and/or wolf.”
	Section 2. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.
	If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision ...
	Section 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.
	This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) calendar days after adoption in accordance with the Dunes City Charter.
	_______________________________________
	ROBERT FORSYTHE, MAYOR
	ATTEST:
	___________________________________
	JAMIE MILLS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR

	Proclamation National Child Abuse Prevention April 2019
	MAYORAL PROCLAMATION:

	Property Donation Information 2019.4.10
	Request to participate with School District 2019.4.10
	Info for purchase of Meters 2019.4.10
	Florence Policy on Social Media
	(Dunes City) Contract for Legal Services with no Retainer (P0431300xA1B60)
	dc_report_es_2019.04.10
	Emergency Services Report to City Council

	March 18, 2019 WLEOG Meeting Packet
	dc_report_cr_20190410
	City Administrator/City Recorder Report to City Council

	Mail Logs 2019.4.10
	Calendars 2019.4.10

